EVANS AREA

The newly formed Marconi Wireless Telegraph Company of America purchased a ninety-three acre farm in New Jersey from a man by the name of Woolley at the turn of the twentieth century. Located in Belmar, this was to be the site of their receiver equipment for commercial transatlantic radio operation.

	1914
	The headquarters building of the present Evans Area was completed and dedicated in 1914. The Marconi Hotel was designated as a forty-five room hotel for unmarried employees.

	1914
	During 1913, Edward H. Armstrong worked at Columbia University on an invention which he hoped would improve the sensitivity of radio receivers. It was successfully demonstrated at Columbia on January 6, 1914. The next step was to use the antenna complex of the Marconi Company in Belmar. On January 30, 1914, after usual problems in getting good signals, the circuit was given its test. Again successful, the signals filled the air with unprecedented volume. This was Armstrong's regenerative circuit, and signals were heard from around the world.

	1919
	During WWI, the U.S. Navy took over control of American Marconi. At the war’s end, U.S. industry (at government urging) exchanged American dollars for the British interests. It started with $3,000,000 from the General Electric Company, with Westinghouse and AT&T soon also developing interest in this “new baby infant” called radio. On December 1, a new corporation called RCA came from this technological incubator.

	1924
	The Belmar site was abandoned because new transatlantic receiver stations farther north were showing great advantages. For some years, the main Marconi building served as state headquarters for a group known as the Ku Klux Klan.

	1937-1941
	Reverend Percy Crawford, a protestant evangelist from Philadelphia, purchased the tract for a school which he called King's College. It soon became apparent to him that he needed more building space at the same time the Signal Corps knew they, too, needed more building space and acreage. Accordingly, in November 1941, the Signal corps announced the purchase of King’s College, including the original American Marconi buildings and the surrounding ninety-three acres as a start. The plan was to close the temporary Fort Hancock radar laboratory and to expand substantially in Belmar. The Evans Signal Laboratory was established as a center for radar development in WWII and was initially called the Signal Corps Radar Laboratory.

	1942
	The site was re-designated as Camp Evans Signal Laboratory (in honor of the late LTC Paul Wesley Evans) as, at that time, the term "radar" was classified. SCR-268 shelters were constructed and have been under continuous modification.

	1942
	At this time, the Squier Laboratory and the field laboratories at Camp Coles and Eatontown constituted the “Signal Corps General Development Laboratories” (SCGDL).  In December 1942, the War Department ordered the consolidation of the SCGDL with the Evans Signal Laboratory to form the Signal Corps Ground Service (SCGS), with headquarters at the Hotel Grossman in Bradley Beach, New Jersey.  The official name of the organization after the war was, “U. S. Army Signal Corps Engineering Laboratories” (SCEL), and, as of April 1958, “U. S. Army Signal Corps Research and Development Laboratory.”

	1945
	On April 6, the name was shortened to the Evans Signal Laboratory.

	1946
	On January 10, Signal Corps scientists succeeded in reflecting electronic pulses off the moon using a specially designed radar set -- the Diana Tower.

	1955-1957
	In early planning for the International Geophysical Year (IGY, 1957-1958) and building on the success of the Diana Project and follow-on experiments, SCEL scientists proposed the launching of a communications satellite.  This was to have been the U. S. contribution to the IGY space exploration objectives. However, at the end of inter-service rivalry, the Navy got the right to build America’s first satellite, dubbed “Explorer.”  Nevertheless, anticipating the launch of its first satellite, the Army built on the Diana site at Camp Evans, a large parabolic antenna with an appropriate transceiver.  When the Soviet Union beat America to the punch with the launch of Sputnik I in 1957, the installation at Camp Evans was one of the few facilities in the United States capable of picking up and tracking the feeble signals of the Soviet moon. 


	1958
	Re-designated Evans Area effective February 1.

	1958
	On June 23, “Fort Monmouth radio hears first Europe moon signals” -- reflected radio signals heard for almost an hour by the fifty foot Diana dish. The pulse was beamed at the moon by the world’s largest rotating antenna, the 250 foot dish at the Jodrell Bank Experiment Station, Manchester, England.

	1961
	The last standing Marconi tower received cloud-covered pictures from Tiros I.

	1977
	The site transferred to the Army Electronics Research and Development Command. The lab there took on the designation of Combat Surveillance and Target Acquisition Laboratory.

	1981
	On December 14 the “1st Transatlantic Radio Achievement Marked in County.” A wreath was placed at the foot of the antenna mast to memorialize Marconi’s first transatlantic radio transmission eighty years ago on December 12, 1901.

	1982
	Camp Evans was ruled out as a science center site as “Monmouth County does not have as substantial a population as the northern counties.”

	1993
	An Enhanced Preliminary Assessment Report (EnPA) was begun. 


	1993
	A 1993 Base Realignment and Closure Commission (BRAC) decision ordered the closing of the Evans Area.  Evans was divided into 9 distinct parcels (A, A’, B, C, D, D’, E, F, G) for real estate transactions.  The bulk of the property would be transferred to Wall Township.  Smaller portions would eventually go to Brookdale Community College, the New Jersey Department of Transportation, and GPU. 
 The process of transferring property is known as a “Public Benefit Conveyance,” or PBC, in which the government may turn excess facilities and real property over to prospective users at no cost to the recipient, providing the property will be used to benefit the public.  As defined by the General Services Administration, Public Benefit Conveyances are properties that may be conveyed for specific purposes such as public health or education facilities, historic monuments, parks and recreation, correctional institutions and wildlife areas.  

Wall Township planned to use the acreage for passive and active recreation such as parks and ball fields, which falls within the scope of a Public Benefit Conveyance.


	1993
	An asbestos survey was performed by the Army at Camp Evans. No threat to health or safety was identified. 


	1994
	The EnPA Report was completed in January. According to Chris Kencik, environmental coordinator for the remediation of Camp Evans, the report “evaluated existing baseline environmental conditions based on historical records and personnel interviews, and became the basis for further environmental investigations required to ensure environmental acceptability of the property prior to any future conveyance actions.”
 

	1994
	The Marconi Park Advisory Committee and Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) were formed to explore reuse plans for the Evans Area. The purpose of the RAB, more specifically, was to “bring together community members who reflect the diverse interests within the community surrounding the Evans Area, enabling a continued two-way flow of information, concerns, values, and needs between the community and the installation.”


	1996
	The RAB had its first organizational meeting on June 11. It was slated to meet on a monthly basis. 


	1996
	BRAC mandates that all sites selected for closure be assessed for historical value.  In 1996, Geo-Marine, Inc. was contracted to prepare the “Evaluation Of Selected Cultural Resources At Fort Monmouth, New Jersey: Context For Cold War Era, Revision Of Historic Properties Documentation, and Survey Of Evans Area And Sections Of Camp Charles Wood.”


	1997 
	In October, AT&T donated a 1987 Amdahl 5890 mainframe processor and associated hardware to the InfoAge Learning Center. The mainframe was at one time worth $6 to $7 million. The learning center planned to use the mainframe “as an example of how far computer technology has come in such a short time and as an inspiration for where it can go.”


	1997
	On October 30, the RAB reported that a sewage treatment plant and two other buildings along Marconi Road slightly contaminated with Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) were being demolished. The Army would also remove several underground neutralization tanks located at the intersection of Monmouth Boulevard and Marconi Road. RAB further reported that the Army was one-third of the way through with a plan to eliminate the camp’s 35 fuel oil underground storage tanks. All Camp Evans employees were scheduled for transfer to Fort Monmouth’s Main Post by November 1998.


	1997
	The RAB reported in early November that “there have been some sporadic hits of volatile chemicals in the testing of ground water” at Camp Evans. Wells were to be dug to monitor the ground water, which would be held to the same standards as drinking water. Christopher Kencik, environmental coordinator for key activities concerning Camp Evans, stated that he believed there would be “no adverse impact on human receptors.”


	1997
	On December 6, Fort Monmouth conducted tours of the radiological testing and calibration facilities for the RAB and general public. The tour addressed environmental remediation and testing processes. 
 

	1997
	The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development approved Wall Township’s plan to use the 215 acre Camp Evans site for education and recreation. Sixty acres were reserved for education (presumably by Brookdale Community College, who filed a notice of interest), with the rest to be used for open space and recreation by the township. Local officials were required to apply to federal government departments to sponsor the land transfer (the Department of the Interior for Wall Township, and the Department of Education for Brookdale Community College). The land would then be turned over to the agencies, which would give the land at no cost to Wall Township and Brookdale. This would be the first Army land reuse plan providing land at no cost. The Army projected at the time that the entire transfer would be complete by September 1999.


	1997
	The Department of the Army released the final Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) on the disposal and reuse of Camp Evans. The EIS analyzed potential environmental and socioeconomic consequences of three different reuse scenarios; those being high, medium, and low-intensity reuse. The reuse plan proposed by Wall Township and the Marconi Complex Advisory Committee was found to be low –intensity, with no significant adverse impacts. Township committee man and chairman of the Marconi Park Advisory Committee Michael Fitzgerald called the EIS a “blueprint for the RAB.” 


	1997
	In December, former electrical testing buildings known as 9049 and 9359 were demolished.


	1998
	In 1998, the tentative date for the complete transfer of the Evans Area was set for September 30, 1999. 

	1998
	The RAB passed a motion in March to draft a letter including RAB’s “concerns regarding lead-based paint testing and a ‘wish-list’ of tests they would like to see done.” Michael Ruane, Fort Monmouth transition coordinator with the office of the Secretary of Defense, reported that the decision to fund/not fund testing for lead-based paint was under review by the Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Defense and Department of the Army. 


	1998
	The Army began removing stores of the radioactive element cobalt 60 from a pool in a research laboratory at the Evans Area. Reportedly, workers decades ago could read a newspaper by the light of those rods at the bottom of the pool. The laboratory, with 1 ½ foot thick walls, was built in 1952 to test devises including radar, communication technologies, and radiation detectors. 


	1998
	The New Jersey Historical Society expressed concerns that all archaeological issues concerning the Evans Area were not explored, temporarily halting the transfer of the first 90-acre parcel of land known as the “farmhouse area.” 


	1998
	Fort Monmouth planned an oral history video of Camp Evans. 


	1998
	In May, two World War II era Quonset huts at the Evans Area were dismantled for use by a Christian Camp in Schroon Lake, N.Y. 


	1998
	On July 28, the Army Center for Health Promotion and Preventative Medicine ecologist/biologist Larry Tannenbaum met with the RAB to discuss how the Army evaluated ecological and human health risks in making environmental remediation decisions and Shark River sediment issues. Mr. Tannenbaum assured the RAB that “the sediment screening does not suggest the need for a more advanced tier analysis.”
 

	1998
	The Army announced the Record of Decision (ROD) on the Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) for the disposal and reuse of the Evans Area in the fall. The ROD concluded that the 215 acre property would be conveyed to Wall Township “subject to notices and restrictions (identified in the FEIS) relating to the remediation and radiological decommissioning activities (which the Army will complete before the transfer of the property); natural resources, cultural resources, and the protection of human health and the environment.”


	1999
	On Tuesday, March 2, Mike Ruane stated that part of the Evans Area would be turned over to Wall Township by September 30. 
 

	1999
	In April, Saturn of Eatontown donated a $400 Osprey Nest Grant to the Wall Township Environmental Advisory Committee (WTEAC). The osprey nest platform was installed in the Marconi Road area. 


	1999
	Mercury contamination was found in one mile of pipes in the Evans Area sewage system. Michael Ruane reported that the mercury levels appeared to be above acceptable EPA standards, but that over 6,000 linear feet of sewage pipe would be checked to fully assess the problem.
  Former laboratory buildings 9401, 9100, and 9045 were also found to have mercury in the flooring and sanitary pipes.  
 The Army eventually classified all of the mercury as U51 waste, meaning any mercury found needed to be removed even if it was below state standards. (In August, reports showed that the amount of mercury was .0384 per million, well below the state standard of .1 per million.) The decision to remove all mercury meant an enormous increase in the cost and scope of the cleanup project. 

	1999
	The Army Corps of Engineers embarked on a historical and cultural study with the intent of revealing and protecting some of the history that existed/might exist on the property. The study would take place under guidelines set forth by the NJ State Historic Preservation Office. In the event that a historic discovery was made, such as that of a Native American burying ground, a deed restriction would be placed on the property to protect the landmark. 


	1999
	The Evans Area was deemed an official project of “Save America’s Treasures,” a public-private partnership between the White House and the National Trust for Historic Preservation. 


	1999
	The Evans Area was one of only 100 sites in the nation selected for the White House Millennium Project, which included only five other sites in New Jersey (including the Edison Laboratory). 


	1999
	By November, the Army had spent over twenty million dollars on the Camp Evans clean-up. This included remediation of a former radiation spill site. That site, after clean up, had radiation levels less than that of normal background radiation. Also included in the $25 million was the clean-up of the radiological testing pool and mercury tainted sewers.


	1999
	The general public was granted access to the Marconi Buildings and radar laboratory for the first time since 1941 during November 20th tours conducted by the Restoration Advisory Board.
 The tour coincided with the announcement that Native American remains, pottery, and arrowheads were found in sections ‘A’ and ‘B’ during the archaeological survey. Army archaeologists estimated the remains to be over 1,000 years old. The remains were immediately interred and the find was handled in accordance with the Native American Graves and Repatriation Act. Letters were sent to the appropriate Native American tribes to inform them of the discovery. The tribes then had the opportunity to come forward and claim the remains, which the Delaware Nations of Oklahoma ultimately did. They asked that the remains stay in their original resting place, and took the artifacts.  Law mandates that the deed now stipulate preservation of the site as a Native American burial site.
 

	2000
	In early 2000, the Army decided it was necessary to remove the entire Evans Area sewer system. The cost was estimated at $3 million dollars. A debate ensued over whether or not it was the Army’s responsibility to replace the sewage system. The Army’s Base Re-Use and Implementation Manual states that the Army is prohibited from performing any upgrades on a facility to be transferred. The RAB argued that the Army had a responsibility to transfer the buildings in working condition, and that buildings sans sewers did not meet those criteria. Without a sewer system, InfoAge would not be able to get certificates of occupancy for the buildings. The Army interpreted heat, electric, and water as the only utilities imperative for re-use.


	2000
	The national not for profit organization Landmark Volunteers selected the InfoAge Learning Center as one of its 59 sites for the summer 2000 program. Landmark Volunteers provided “selected high school students with the opportunity to provide service to worthy organizations throughout the country.” InfoAge was the only New Jersey site selected. 


	2000
	On April 1st the Army officially notified the public of its intent to transfer the property known as area ‘E.’ The Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) was available for a 30 day public review period through April 30th. 

	2000
	The Army looks for lead paint when the facilities being transferred are slated for residential use or use as a child care facility. Since athletic fields do not meet the Army’s definition of a “child occupied facility,” lead based paint abatement was not legally required for parcel ‘E.’ Lead paint is not considered a hazardous substance under the Army’s Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act. However, RAB members expressed fears that lead based paint chips would make their way to the athletic fields and into the mouths of children. The Army also stated it was not responsible for removing asbestos unless it was friable. Ground water contamination in that area was attributed to an off site source, clearing the Army of the responsibility to remediate that problem as well. 
 

	2000
	On May 5, Camp Evans was officially announced a New Jersey Historic District by the New Jersey Historic Preservation Office. 


	2000
	On November 11, a Finding of Suitability to Lease (FOSL) document for area ‘D’ of the Evans Area was made available for a 30 day review period to end 1 December 2000. 

	2001
	A major accomplishment was finalizing environmental documentation (Finding of Suitability to Transfer and the BRAC Disposal Support Package) for the three largest parcels at Evans, Parcels A, A’ and B.  These three parcels comprised approximately 65% of the Evans Area.  These parcels were scheduled to transfer to Wall Township for recreational reuse in December 2001.  In addition, the Office of the Deputy Chief of Staff for Operations and Plans (DCSOPS) prepared a Finding of Suitability to Lease (FOSL).  The FOSL preceded a lease that, once signed, granted Brookdale Community College use of a small portion of the Evans Area (Parcel D’). 

Licenses and an easement granted in 2001 permitted Wall Township the use of some property prior to the formal transfer.  DCSOPS prepared and staffed the necessary paperwork.  For each transaction this included a Record of Environmental Consideration (REC) and a Report of Availability (ROA). A license amendment signed in March 2001 allowed Wall Township use of the Little League fields in Parcel E.  The Little League season opened there in April.   An easement along Eighth Avenue allowed access to the ball fields from Monmouth Boulevard.  The alternative was to access the fields via busy Belmar Boulevard, posing likely traffic and potential safety problems.  A license signed in September 2001 permitted the use of two acres of Parcel B for the InfoAge Learning Center.

Another significant accomplishment was finalizing the Cultural and Historic Resources Memorandum of Agreement (MOA).  The Advisory Council on Historic Preservation signed the MOA on 26 September 2001. The MOA was previously signed by the Army Materiel Command (AMC), the New Jersey State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), Wall Township, Brookdale Community College and two Native American tribes. Completion of the MOA cleared the way to convey the Evans Area property.  The MOA included measures for the transfer of historic properties in the Evans Area as well as a preservation covenant for conveyance of archeological sites. 

DCSOPS hosted several meetings with the local community to discuss issues related to the conveyance of the Evans Area. CECOM hosted quarterly BRAC IPRs with Wall Township and Brookdale College officials.  Tours were conducted for Wall Township and Brookdale representatives, as well as members of the Local Re-use Authority (LRA).  In addition, monthly meetings were held with members of the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB). Monthly meetings were established with the residents bordering the Evans Area on Evans Road due to extended PCB contamination issues.

Several new environmental projects began in FY01 at the urging of Brookdale and the RAB.  The largest effort involved the discovery of PCB contamination near the Evans substation and adjoining residential property.  A Time Critical Removal Action was initiated to address part of this contamination.  Planning and assessment activities ensued.  Right of Entry (ROE) agreements were executed with neighboring property owners. The remaining actions for this project were being developed, with remediation efforts scheduled for completion in FY2002.  

All transformer pads at the Evans Area were sampled for PCBs.  Five had PCB readings above NJ residential criteria.  Remediation of those five pads was completed in August 2001.

More than 90 storage sheds in Parcel C were assessed as potential chemical storage sites.  Of those, 34 required sampling and assessment.  The two identified in Parcel D’ were remedied.  The other 32 sheds were slated for remediation in 2002.  

Major events scheduled to occur in FY02 included Real estate transactions assigning nearly 170 acres to Wall Township, 8 acres to Brookdale, and 9 acres to NJDoT; selling 4 acres to GPU; completing ongoing environmental remedial actions relating to PCB contamination and chemical storage sheds; and preparing, finalizing, and approval of FOSTs for Parcels B, D’, F and G.

The remaining parcels (Parcels C and D) were scheduled to be transferred in FY03 following completion of PCB remediation efforts. 



	2001
	On 14 March 2001, the Wall Township Committee endorsed InfoAge’s application to the National Park Service to apply for the no cost transfer of the Camp Evans historic district under the historic surplus property program. 


	2002
	A major focus of the community relations branch of the Public Affairs Office throughout 2002 was the transition of the Evans Area from the U.S. Army to Wall Township and Brookdale Community College, which was expected to be complete in 2004.  Henry T. Kearney, Chief, Public Affairs, personally participated in Restoration Advisory Board meetings in Wall Township to help keep the general public informed about each step of the process and to assist the Fort Monmouth Base Transition Coordinator and BRAC Environmental Coordinator. 


	2002
	On January 25, 2002,  Fort Monmouth Commander Major General William H. Russ appointed Dr. Constella Hines-Zimmerman as the Fort Monmouth Science and Technology Liaison to Infoage.  


	2002
	Portions of Camp Evans, to include the old Marconi Hotel and several other buildings, were placed on the National Register of Historical Places in February 2002. Camp Evans was also listed as one of the most endangered historic sites in New Jersey. 


	2002
	On April 2, 2002, the National Park Service approved InfoAge’s application for the Camp Evans Historic District. The application was forwarded to the Department of the Army for their review and acceptance.  The updated application contained 109 pages of narrative, over 204 photos, 36 architectural drawings, and 8 color diagrams. 


	2002
	On April 3, 2002, the Camp Evans Historic District was entered in the National Register of Historic Places. 


	2002
	On May 3, the Department of the Army signed paperwork to assign 2/3 of the Evans Area to Wall Township. 142 acres, Parcels A, A’, and E, were assigned to the U.S. Department of Interior, after which ownership would be officially transferred to Wall for permanent future ownership and re- use. 


	2002
	A major accomplishment in FY02 was finalizing environmental documentation (Finding of Suitability to Transfer and the BRAC Disposal Support Package) for three parcels of the Evans Area Parcels, Parcels F, B and D’.  This brought the total number of Finding of Suitability to Transfer (FOST) approved by AMC to six (Parcels A, A’, B, D’ E, F). These six parcels comprised approximately eighty-four percent (184 acres) of the Evans Area.  Of these six parcels, four parcels (A, A’, B and E) were conveyed to Wall Township (167 acres), one parcel (D’) was conveyed to Brookdale Community College (eight acres) and one parcel was to be conveyed to the NJ Department of Transportation (Parcel F) for continued use as a State Highway. Another significant accomplishment was coordination of a draft memorandum of agreement (MOA) with Wall Township for sewer replacement.  Under terms of the MOA, the Army would replace sewer pipes to five of the historic buildings at the Evans Area.  The MOA was to be presented to the Wall Township Council in November 2002 for ratification. Residents along Evans Road received a fifty percent reduction in tax assessments in 2002 due to the detrimental affect the discovery of PCBs had on property values.

Time critical removal actions were initiated to address the PCB contamination.  Planning and assessment activities ensued.  Right of entry (ROE) agreements were executed with neighboring property owners. The remaining actions for this project were being developed and remediation efforts were to be completed in FY03. Site mobilization and remediation activities were scheduled to begin in October 2002.  The overall project fieldwork was expected to last approximately four months.  The remediation of PCB contaminated residential property was not deemed a requirement for completion prior to the transfer of the Evans property.  More than ninety storage sheds in Parcel C were assessed as potential chemical storage sites.  Of those, thirty-four were initially sampled and assessed.  The two identified in Parcel D’ were remedied.  Assessment was expanded to include a total of fifty-one sheds. Remediation of sheds exhibiting a Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) release was scheduled for 2003. 



	2003
	FY03 saw the completion of several major BRAC milestones for the Evans Area. A major accomplishment was the transfer of the first two parcels of land. Parcel D’ (eight acres) transferred to Brookdale Community College in August 2003 and Parcel F (nine acres) transferred to the New Jersey Department of Transportation in September 2003. In addition, the National Park Service prepared deeds to transfer three additional parcels of the Evans Area (Parcels A, A’ and E) in May 2003. These three deeds, which accounted for 142 acres, were submitted to Wall Township for countersignature. The Department of Health and Human Services prepared a deed to transfer a one-acre pump house to Wall Township in September 2003. And finally, the Corps of Engineers prepared a deed in May 2003 to transfer 17 acres of Parcel B to Wall Township. Wall Township had not yet signed these deeds at the end of the FY, pending their decision on how to proceed with the abatement of lead based paint. Wall was receiving more than 100 acres; the state, nine acres near route 18; Brookdale, twenty six acres; and Jersey Central Power and Light, four acres. Thirty-seven acres of the Evans property was being used as a science-learning center, InfoAge, focusing on Camp Evans’ history.

Licenses were amended in July 2003 to allow Wall Township to conduct lead based paint cleanup action in two parcels (Parcels B and E) prior to the official transfer of the property. The license amendments also allowed Wall Township to continue to use the Parcel E ball fields and the Parcel B historic buildings for another year or until the property was permanently transferred. Another significant accomplishment was the finalization of a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Wall Township for sewer replacement. The Pentagon agreed to pay up to $700,000 for sewer replacement for five of the historic buildings at the Evans Area. The sewers had been contaminated with mercury. Headquarters Department of the Army (HQDA) signed the MOA in January 2003. 3,000 tons of soil contaminated with polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) were removed. These chemicals escaped from oil, insulating and cooling materials in equipment like transformers. The soil contamination spread to ten properties along Evans Road.

CECOM hosted several meetings with the local community to discuss issues related to the conveyance of the Evans Area. CECOM met periodically with Wall Township and Brookdale College officials. In addition, monthly meetings were held with members of the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB). Periodic meetings were held with the residents bordering the Evans Area on Evans Road to address PCB contamination issues. 
Several environmental projects continued into FY03. The largest effort involved the discovery of PCB contamination near the Evans substation and adjoining residential properties. A Time Critical Removal Action was initiated to address part of this contamination. Planning and assessment activities ensued. Right of Entry (ROE) agreements were executed with neighboring property owners. Decision Documents were prepared and approved. The end of FY03 completed remediation and restoration of seven residential lots. Four additional lots awaited completion. A second key environmental project was the remediation of storage sheds. More than ninety storage sheds in Parcel C and D were assessed as potential chemical storage sites. Of those, thirty-four were initially sampled and assessed. Assessment was expanded to include approximately two thirds of the sheds. A compromise was reached in September 2003 between the U.S. Army and the Evans RAB for testing the sheds. The compromise was reached in anticipation of a report on the historical and visual inspection of each shed. Still in contention was the lead based paint issue, as the Army does not remediate lead based paint issues unless buildings are intended for residential use or extended child oriented

Activities.


	2004
	The first 17 acres of the Camp Evans historic district were transferred to Wall Township “for preservation and adaptive re-use as the Infoage Science History Center.” 


	2004
	Fiscal Year 2004 saw the completion of several major BRAC milestones affecting CECOM.

A major accomplishment was the transfer of three additional parcels of the Evans Area. Parcels A (67 acres) and A’ (23 acres) were transferred to Wall Township in December 2003 and Parcel B (17 acres) was transferred to Wall Township in August 2004. In addition, a one-acre pump house was transferred to Wall Township in February 2004. As of the end of FY04, a total of 177 acres (or 81% of the Evans Area) was transferred to the intended receivers. And finally, the Corps of Engineers prepared a deed in September 2004 to transfer an additional four acres of Parcel B to Wall Township. This deed was scheduled to be finalized in early FY05.  
Licenses were amended in April 2004 to allow Wall Township to conduct lead-based paint cleanup action in two parcels (Parcels B and E) prior to the official transfer of the property. The license amendments also allow Wall Township to continue to use the Parcel E ball fields and the Parcel B historic buildings for another year or until the property is permanently transferred. 

Another significant accomplishment was the completion of the first phase of the sewer replacement project as part of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Wall Township signed in January 2003.  Under terms of the MOA, the Army agreed to replace sewer pipes to five of the historic buildings at the Evans Area.  The second phase of the sewer replacement project was expected to be completed in mid FY05. 

An agreement in principle was reached between the Army and Wall Township in August 2004 in which the Army agreed to take necessary corrective actions to address the deteriorating condition of historic buildings in Parcel C. The proposed course of action included asbestos abatement and interior building demolition of the “H” Buildings in FY05. 

CECOM  hosted several meetings with the local community to discuss issues related to the conveyance of the Evans Area.   CECOM met periodically with Wall Township and Brookdale College officials.  In addition, monthly meetings were held with members of the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB).   Periodic meetings were held with the residents bordering the Evans Area on Evans Road to address PCB contamination issues.

Several environmental projects continued.  The largest effort involved the discovery of PCB contamination near the Evans substation and adjoining residential properties.  A Time Critical Removal Action was initiated to address part of this contamination.  Planning and assessment activities ensued.  Right of Entry (ROE) agreements were executed with neighboring property owners. Remediation Action Reports (RAR) were prepared and No Further Action (NFA) letters were issued by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP). Remediation and restoration of approximately ten residential lots was completed by the end of the fiscal year. A few additional lots awaited completion of landscape restoration activities. 

A second key environmental project was the remediation of storage sheds. More than 90 storage sheds in Parcels C and D were assessed as potential chemical storage sites.  By the end of FY04, the Army had completed over 90% of the storage shed remediation project.  Completion of remediation at the few remaining sheds in Parcel C was expected during the first quarter of FY05.  Finally, sampling assessment within Parcel G (Glendola Electrical Substation operated by JCP&L) documented the need for remedial action by JCP&L.  JCP&L completed its remediation by September 2004 and was awaiting NJDEP approval of its Remedial Action Report, expected in early FY05. 



	2005
	In February, NASA granted InfoAge funds to become part of the NASA Digital Learning Network. 
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